
                   AGENDA FOR SPECIAL MEETING OF MARCH 24, 2010    Page 1  of  2 
 

 
P.O. BOX 675 ▪ 61750 CHOLLITA ROAD ▪ JOSHUA TREE ▪ CALIFORNIA 92252 

TELEPHONE (760) 366-8438    FAX (760) 366-9528    E-MAIL  jbwd@jbwd.com 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY MARCH 24, 2010, 4:00 PM 
61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE, CA  92252 

 

 
AGENDA 

     

 1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

 4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

 5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

  
Pages  1-2 
Page     3 
Pages  4-5 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
A. Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of March 3 2010 
B. Approve payment to Ficara for paving in the amount of $35,020.45 
C. Approve Project Priority List change. 
 

 7. UNITED STATES GEOLOGICAL SURVEY PRESENTATION  
 

Pages  6-33 8. UNITED STATES GEOLOGICAL SURVEY (USGS) STUDY CONTINUATION 
Recommend that the Board Approve agreement to continue study of the groundwater 
recharge project in the amount of $524,450 for federal fiscal year 2009/2010; 
appropriate $174,450 from the unappropriated reserves. 
 

Pages  34-35 9. NAMING OF LANDSCAPE DEMONSTRATION GARDEN 
Recommend that the Board determine the official name of the Landscape 
Demonstration Garden. 
 

 10. DESIGNATE MONTH OF APRIL AS EARTHQUAKE PREPAREDNESS MONTH 
Recommend that the Board recognize the April as earthquake preparedness month. 
 

Page     36 11. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF BUDGET AMENDMENT FOR PROMOTIONAL 
CONSERVATION ITEMS 
Recommend that the Board approve budget amendment of $5,000. 



                   AGENDA FOR SPECIAL MEETING OF MARCH 24, 2010    Page 2  of  2 
 

 

Pages  37-39 12. PROJECT PRIORITY LIST 
An update on staff’s progress with assigned projects. 
 

 13. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 14. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 

 15. DIRECTOR COMMENTS/REPORTS 
 

 16. ADJOURNMENT 
  

The Board of Directors reserves the right to take action on items reserved for discussion only.  
INFORMATION 
During either "Public Comment” Item, please use the podium microphone.  State your name and have your 
information prepared and be ready to provide your comments to the Board.  The District is interested and appreciates 
your comments.  A 3-minute time limit may be imposed.  Thank you. 
Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone 
Joshua Basin Water District at (760) 366-8438, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a 
disability-related modification or accommodation. 
 

Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet 
are available for public inspection in the District’s office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 
92252 during normal business hours. 



 

1                                                  Regular and Special Meeting of March 3, 2010 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes of the 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
March 3, 2010 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER    7:00 PM 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: By roll-call: 
       Gary Given  Present  
       Bill Long  Present 
       Mickey Luckman Present 
       Mike Reynolds Present 
       Gary Wilson  Present 
 

 STAFF PRESENT:   Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
      Susan Greer Assistant GM/Controller 
      Terry Spurrier, HR/Administrative Services Supervisor 
 

 CONSULTANTS:   Kathleen Radnich, Public Information and Outreach 
  

 GUESTS:   6 
 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
MSC Long/Reynolds 5/0 to approve the agenda for the March 3, 2010 Regular Meeting of the Board of 

Directors. 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
Director Wilson requested clarification of item D; after discussion the Board took the following action: 
MSC Luckman/Long 5/0 to approve the minutes of the Special and Regular Meeting of February 17, 

2010; to Approve the minutes of the Water and Land Use Forum February 18-19 2010; to approve 
the financial report for January 2010, and to waive current and future late fees for Copper 
Mountain College. 

 

7. REPORT ON 2009 WORK-RELATED INJURIES AND ILLNESSES - NONE 
Assistant GM/Controller Susan Greer gave the staff report noting that the District had no reportable work-

related injuries in 2009.  This is the second year of no injuries.  She emphasized the safety 
programs underway.  Board Members commended and congratulated all district staff on its 
conscientiousness for safety. 

 

8. LETTER TO 3RD DISTRICT SUPERVISOR NEIL DERRY 
Vice President Luckman requested that the Board send a letter to 3rd District County Supervisor Neil 

Derry advising him that the zoning of Section 33 is of considerable concern to the community, an 
issue that was raised at the recent Forum on Land Use and Water Policy sponsored by JBWD and 
the County of San Bernardino.  She emphasized that the District is not suggesting an appropriate 
density since land use and density are within the authority of the County.   

Director Reynolds expressed concern that just the fact of formally writing a letter could be understood as 
supporting a down-zoning. 

Steve Whitman noted that the Joshua Tree Municipal Advisory Committee will consider Section 33 at a 
special meeting on Thursday, March 4and that Supervisor Derry will attend; that ownership will 
likely be retained by the lender of Section 33 after foreclosure sale; and that the Board should 

Page 1 of 39



 

2                                                  Regular and Special Meeting of March 3, 2010 

avoid giving the appearance of support of down-zoning of Section 33. Al Marquez spoke in 
opposition to sending the letter. Following discussion no action was taken. 

 

9. USGS WELL DRILLING 
General Manager Joe Guzzetta gave the staff report advising that the Board had previously approved a 

budget containing $360,000 for a well at the proposed site of the ground water recharge project, 
and had also approved a contract with USGS providing for drilling of the well. 

MSC Long/Luckman 4/1 to reaffirm authorization to spend $350,000 for the United States Geological 
Survey to drill the monitoring well at the Ground Water Recharge Pond Site. 

   Given  Aye 
   Long  Aye 
   Luckman Aye 
   Reynolds Aye 
   Wilson  No 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Al Marquez of Joshua Tree referred to a newspaper article reporting that a homeowner in Orange, 

California, was prosecuted for having less that 40% of his front yard covered with landscaping 
although he stated he was attempting to save water. 

 

11. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT  
General Manager Guzzetta advised the Board that the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) 

has conducted a Municipal Service Review of Hi Desert Water District and identified 640 acres in 
the Homestead Valley area that are in no water district sphere of influence.  They have proposed 
placing 75% of the area in the Hi Desert Water District Sphere of Influence and 25% in the Joshua 
Basin Water District Sphere of Influence.  The 25% should be addressed formally when LAFCO 
conducts the Joshua Basin Water District Municipal Service Review 

He reported that he, Director Luckman, and other staff were at the Mojave Water Agency (MWA) 
Technical Advisory Committee today where the 2010 Urban Water Management Plan was 
discussed extensively.  GM Guzzetta has asked Kennedy-Jenks, consultant for MWA, to submit a 
proposal to Joshua Basin Water District to prepare an Urban Water Management Plan “piggy-
backing” on MWA’s plan. 

 

12. DIRECTOR COMMENTS/REPORTS  
Director Long reported that he attended the MWA Board meeting last Thursday where there was 

extensive discussion about the amount of State Water Project water that will be available this year, 
and the cost for the water. Director Luckman reported that she attended the MWA Technical 
Advisory Committee meeting earlier today as reported by the General Manager.  Director 
Reynolds noted that water usage in Joshua Basin Water District was 9% lower than last year for 
the month of January. 

` 

13. ADJOURNMENT 7:40 PM 
MSC Long/Luckman 5/0 to adjourn the March 3, 2010 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors. 
 
Respectfully submitted; 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
 
The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for March 3, 2010. 
 

Page 2 of 39



Page 3 of 39



Page 4 of 39



Page 5 of 39



Page 6 of 39



Page 7 of 39



Page 8 of 39



Page 9 of 39



Page 10 of 39



Page 11 of 39



Page 12 of 39



Page 13 of 39



Page 14 of 39



Page 15 of 39



Page 16 of 39



Page 17 of 39



Page 18 of 39



Page 19 of 39



Page 20 of 39



Page 21 of 39



Page 22 of 39



Page 23 of 39



Page 24 of 39



Page 25 of 39



Page 26 of 39



Page 27 of 39



Page 28 of 39



Page 29 of 39



Page 30 of 39



Page 31 of 39



Page 32 of 39



Page 33 of 39



Page 34 of 39



Suggestions for the JBWD Demonstration Garden  
 
The following names are all preceded with 
 
“Joshua Basin”… 
  Desert Preservation Gardens 
  Minerva Hoyt Memorial Gardens 
  Minerva Hoyt Botanical Gardens 
  Minerva Hoyt Desert Demonstration Gardens 
  Lifestyle Landscape Gardens 
  Desert Demonstration Gardens 
  Gardens for Tomorrow 
  Desert-Wise Demonstration Gardens 
  Native Choices Gardens 
  Landscape Solutions Demonstration Gardens 
  Desert Garden Designs 
  Smart and Local Landscape Gardens 
  Desert Beautiful Landscape Gardens 
  Water Smart Gardens 
  Going Native Landscape Gardens 
  Desert Living Landscape Gardens 
  Desert Gardens for Water Guardians 
  Smart Landscaping Gardens 
   
 
Any of the above can also be moved around to be preceded with  
“at Joshua Basin Water District” 
   
  
    

Page 35 of 39



Page 36 of 39



Updated    3/18/2010                  Page 1 

Project Priority List 
 
PROJECTS NEARING COMPLETION 
Miscellaneous Pipeline Replacement Project:  Juniper north of Hwy 62, Veterans Way 
and Center St. between Chollita Rd. and Commercial St., easement behind Hwy 62 
(south side) between El Reposo Circle and Sunset Rd., easement behind Hwy 62 (south 
side) Conejo Ave. and Outpost Rd; Torres Ave., Division St., San Angelo Way; 
Sunflower Rd., Sun Mesa Rd. between Sunever Ave. and Sun Kist Rd. 
Project is ready to go to bid, awaiting possible grant funds. 
Conservation Landscape Demonstration Garden & Residential Landscape Designs  
Construction is substantially complete with remaining plant material not available until 
Spring. 
Review of Community Service District (CSD)  
The Board referred to the Citizens Advisory Committee consideration of the impacts of a 
CSD on Joshua Basin Water District.  Committee recommendations were presented at the 
July 18th 2007 Board meeting and continued to a later date. 
Conduct Fee Study (Susan) 
Water rates, capacity and inter-agency fee studies have been completed.  Miscellaneous 
fees are being developed, based upon resources used – staff, vehicle, equipment, etc. 
Well #16   (Joe Bocanegra)   
Equipment has been installed.  Awaiting “green tag” for electrical panel inspection and 
certification by Department of Health Services. 
Personnel Policy Manual (Joe Guzzetta) 
This will be considered during labor negotiations this year. 
Landscape Ordinance (Joe Guzzetta) 
AWAC will draft a new model ordinance to comply with new state legislation AB 8118 
 
PROJECTS UNDERWAY 

• Emergency Preparedness/Response Exercises 
 Staff will meet on March 31 to begin planning the emergency exercise. 
Final Phase of 4” Pipe Replacement  (Joe Guzzetta, Joe Bocanegra, Keith Faul) 
Priorities have been established.  Engineering RFP will be issued by the first of 2010.  
Construction is pending a financial strategy to be considered by the Board. 
Develop Public Outreach Program 
The Ad Hoc committee meets regularly.  Public information for the Groundwater 
Recharge Project, Demonstration Garden dedication and docent program, and the Water 
and Land Use Forum are underway. 
Record Archival System  (Susan) 
Staff had second presentation. 
Recharge Site Evaluation/USGS Study 
Property has been purchased.  Monitoring well will be installed by April 2010.  Contract 
for final engineering should be awarded by June pending EPA approval.  Construction is 
contingent on Proposition 84 and other funding. 
C-2 Tank Relocation (Joe Bocanegra) 
Ready to go to bid pending funding. A USDA Grant Pre-Application has been submitted 
for this project. 

Page 37 of 39



Updated    3/18/2010                  Page 2 

 
PROJECTS NOT BEGUN 
Develop/Update Board Policies and Procedures (Susan Greer) 
Update 3030 Plan (Joe Guzzetta) 
Staff intends to solicit proposals for this project. 
Equipment Carport at Shop  (Joe Bocanegra) 
Needs are being evaluated. 
Election to Charge Private Wells for Replacement Water 
Attorney is reviewing election options. 
 
PROJECTS COMPLETED 

• Land Use/Water Policy Forum (Joe Guzzetta) 
 Completed February 18 & 19 2010. 
Implement “Best Management Practices” of the California Urban Water Conservation 
Council (Terry Spurrier) 
Completed. 
Complete Wastewater Treatment Strategy and Implementation Mechanisms (Joe 
Guzzetta, Susan Greer, Joe Bocanegra) 
The Board adopted the Wastewater Strategy at the July 15th, 2009 meeting. 
Package Treatment Plant Policy Regarding Construction and Maintenance 
Complete with Board’s adoption of the Wastewater Treatment Strategy 
Site Security and Telemetry System Upgrades:   
Enhancements to security including motion sensors and intrusion alarms: complete. 
Tank Recoating (Joe Bocanegra) 
Completed and has been put into routine maintenance program. 
Replace Accounting Mainframe  (Susan) 
First water bills using new system were mailed. 
Emergency Generator (Joe Bocanegra) 
Generators have been delivered. 
Remote Meter Policy (Susan) 
Board has adopted revised policy. 
Website Development /Establish District Public Information Program (Joe Guzzetta) 
The website is up and running. 
Property Acquisition for Future Water Facilities  
Property acquisition consultant was selected at the September 9th Board meeting. 
Construction of H Zone Phase II Pipeline Replacement Project  
Completed.  Notice of Completion filed. 
Replace Line Printer (Susan) 
Replaced with smaller printers. 
Develop Cross-Connection Control Program  
Program is being implemented. 
Replace JD310 Tractor 
Complete. 
Replace Septic Tank at Shop 
Complete. 
Sewer Management Authority 
LAFCO designated JBWD as the wastewater authority on August 15th.   

Page 38 of 39



Updated    3/18/2010                  Page 3 

Construction of H Zone Phase I Pipeline Replacement Project  
Construction of Phase I is complete.  
Well 17 Wellhead Construction 
Well became operational in July. 
Organization Study  
Completed.  Staff is implementing the study. 
Closed Circuit Security System  
Video monitoring system is in place. 
Safety Consultant; Program 
Initial safety plans are complete. 

Page 39 of 39




